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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Hector H. Balderas,

New Mexico State Auditor
Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Portales

Portales, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for
the general fund and the major special revenue funds of the City of Portales (the "City"), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the City's nonmajor
governmental funds and the budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds and all nonmajor funds
presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fung,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons
for the general fund and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each nonmajor governmental fund of the City as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes
in financial position thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds and
all nonmajor governmental funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 24,
2010, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisious of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on ¢ompliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
resuits of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the infornmation and express no opinion
on it.

Ouwr audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, and the
cotmbining and individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparisons. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the financial statements. The additional schedules
listed as "other supplemental information" in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, 1s fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Bricklar § PReaty, LLP

November 24, 2010



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2010

The following is an overview of the financial condition of the City of Portales, New Mexico (the “City”),
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This narrative highlights the major aspects of the City’s financial
status for this period, and should be considered in conjunction with the information presented in other

sections of this audit report.
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

Government-wide Statements

Government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the
government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in
the statement of activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

. Govemmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as
police, fire and general administration. Gross receipts and property taxes finance most
of these activities.

. Business type activities ~ The City charges fees to customers to help cover the cost of
certain services it provides. The City’s water, sewer, solid waste and airport are
included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds-
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources

of funding and spending for particular purposes.
The City has three types of funds:

a Govemmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available
for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

o Proprietary funds — Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds.

o Fiduciary funds — The City is responsible for other assets that, because of a trust
arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

-3-



The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net assets and total liabilities may serve over time as useful indicators of a government’s financial
condition. Net assets for the City as a whole increased by $2,856,701 in the year ended June 30, 2010.
This increase reflects an ongoing investment in buildings, infrastructure, equipment and vehicles to assist
the City in providing services to the community. Tota! liabilities decreased by $§1,267,248 during this
time period. This decrease indicates that the City was able to add assets, while reducing related liabilities.
Based on these indicators, one can conclude that the government’s financial condition is sound. The net
assets of the City of Portales exceeded liabilities by $23,277,257 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The largest portion, $19,584,535, reflects the City’s investment jn capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
machinery and equipment); less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The City uses these assets to provide services Lo citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since capital
assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of
$6,659,677 may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of

the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of net assets.

A condensed statement of net assets is as follows:

CITY OF PORTALES
Net Assets
Governmental Actlvities Business-ype Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ASSETS
Cuirent assets 3 5.769.210 $ 5295009 $§ 2,700.627 § 2,118,008 $ 8,469,837 § 7,413,017
Restricted cash and cash equivaleots 137,326 134,271 3,236 397 2,964,704 3,373,723 3,098,975
Bond issue costs. net - - 14,178 28,357 14,178 28,357
Bond reissue costs, net - - 22,124 44,247 22,124 44,247
Capital assets, net 10,572,301 9,617,665 13416002 14,077,092 23.988,3)3 23.694.157
Total assets § 16478837 S 15046945 § 19389338 § 19232408 $ 35.888,175 § 34,279,353
LJABIL)TIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities S 703,236 § 1,022,169 $ 848,046 S 882911 § §.551282 ¢ 1,905,080
Customer deposits - - 227,613 217,010 227,613 217,010
Accrued compensated absences 310,084 274,569 42913 41,305 352,997 315874
Landfil) closure - - 706,380 706,380 706,380 706,380
Long texm debl duc after one year 497,949 863,781 2,959,238 3.554.583 3,457,187 4,418,364
Total liabihties 1,511,26% 2,160,519 4,784,190 5,402,189 6,295,459 7,562,708
NET ASSETS
[nvested in capital assets, net of
velated debt 9,785.315 8425310 9,799,220 9.855,544 19,584,535 18,280,854
Restricied for.
Debt service 23,406 23.939 505,353 532,430 528,759 556,369
Capilal projects (13,919 110,332 972,557 783,548 1,086,476 893,830
Water conservation - - 1,006.889 947802 1,006,889 947.802
Langdfilf closure - - 706,380 706,380 706,380 706.380
Unrestricted 5,044,928 4,326.845 1,614,749 1,004,515 6.659.677 5.331,360
Totat net assels 14,967,568 12.886,426 14,605,148 13,830,219 29,572,716 26,716,645
Tota! Liaklities and net assels $ 16478.837 § 15046945 S 19389338 § 19232408 5§ 35868,175 § 34279353




Govermmental activities were able to increase total assets by $1,431,892 from June 30, 2009 to June 30,
2010. The Jargest part of this increase was for net capital assets which increased by $954,636. Projects
completed during this timeframe include the Yam Theatre renovation and pool remodel. Governmental
activities also added current assets valued at $474,201 in the 2009-2010 fiscal year.

Governmental liabilities decreased by $649,249 for the year ended June 30, 2010. Current and long term
debt was paid down by $684,764. No new debt was incurred by governmental funds during the fiscal
year. Accrued compensated absences increased by $35,5135.

Business type activities also increased total assets during the fiscal year. Total assets increased by
$156,930. The asset categories with the largest increases were current assets (increase of $582,619) and
restricted assets (increase of $271,693). Capital assets (net) decreased from $14,077,092 to $13,416,012,
a reduction of $661,080. Business type activity capital assets include well, water systems, and airport
improvements.

Total liabilities decreased for business type activities during the fiscal year. Current liabilities decreased
by $34,865 and long term liabilities decreased by $595,345. The City did not incur any additional long
term liabilities duning the fiscal year.

A condensed comparative statement of activities is as follows:

CITY OF PORTALES
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Governmental Activitles Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

REVENUES:
Program revenues:

Charges for services Y 919,007 $ 941,240 $ 5,082,106 § 5.190,648 S 6001,113 § 6,131,888

Opersting grants and contributions 1,787.353 1369376 40,600 - 1,827,953 1,369,376

Capita) grants and coninibutions 735353 ).888,765 466,263 285.956 1,201,616 2,174,721
Genera) revenues:

Gross receipts taxes 5.408,670 5265387 122,932 119,760 5,531,602 5,385,117

Other taxes 007,744 934,311 - - 907,744 934,311

Water conservation fees - - 329,856 278,70} 329,856 278,701

Lnvestments 37.643 9,821 84,543 7,202 122,186 17,023

Rentals, rebnborsements & other 149,491 168,474 - - 149,491 168,474

Transfers, net 893,105 1,307,048 (893,105) (1.307.048) - -

Total revenues $ 10838366 § 11,884392 § 5233195 § 4,575,219 S 16,071,561 $§ 16,459,611

Expenses:

General government S 8702808 S 9296876 S - $ - $ 8,702,808 § 9,296,876

Water & sewer - - 2.894,685 2,589,408 2,894,685 2,589.408

Solid waste - - 1,072,785 1,015,189 1,072,785 1,115,189

Alrport - - 34(,223 353.901 341,223 353,901

Interest expense 54416 66,483 149,573 157,622 203,989 224,108

Total expenses 8,757,224 9,363,359 4458266 4,216,120 13,215,490 13,579,479

Change in net assets: 2,081,042 2,521,033 774,929 359,099 2.856,071 2,880,132

Net assets, beginning of the year 12,886,426 10,365.393 13,830,219 13,471,120 26,716,645 23,836,513
Net assets, end of year § 14967568 S 12386426 S 14605,048 $§ 13830219 § 29,572,716 $ 26,716645




COMPARISON OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Revenues (excluding net transfers) for governmental activities decreased by 6% during the 2010 fiscal year.
The reason for this decrease was a large decrease in operating and capital grants, which decreased by 23%
for the year ended June 30, 2010. The State of New Mexico reduced the amount of grants awarded due to
budget problems at the state level. Gross receipt tax collections were up by 2.7% for this fiscal year,
increasing from $5,265,357 to $5,408,670. Several large construction projects were completed within the
City limits during the fiscal year, which caused an increase in gross receipts from construction. Investment
income was up for governmental activities, increasing from $9,82] to $37,643. This increase was due to a
shift from cash to government and agency bonds.

General government expenses decreased by 6.5% during the fiscal year. Expenses were reduced due to
fewer capital projects and a reduction in discretionary expeunditures. City management monitored
expenditures throughout the year to ensure that they were in line with revenues.

Revenues for business type activities (excluding net transfers) increased by 32.8% during the 2010 fiscal
year. Charges for services revenue dropped by 2.1%. This decrease was due to a wetter, cooler summer and
water conservation efforts. Gross receipts collections for business type activities increased by 2.7%,
reflecting the same percentage increase experienced by the governmental activities. Investment income for
business type activities increased from $7,202 to $84,543 due to a switch to investing in government and
agency bonds.

Expenses for water and sewer increased by 11.8% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The increases
can be accounted for by filling vacant positions and increased maintenance costs. Expenses in solid waste
decreased by 3.8%. The decrease can be attributed to employee turnover and salary savings. Expenses for
the airport decreased by 3.6% during the fiscal year. This decrease was due to a reduction in maintenance
COsts.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Governmental FFunds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Postales’ financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a goverument’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the 2010 fiscal year, the City’s
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $5,515,276. The general fund balance of
$2,895,756 represents fifty-three percent of the total governmental fund balances. The general fund
balance increased by $266,107 in 2010. Taxes receivable increased by $236,992 due to increased gross
receipts tax collections.

General fund revenues totaled $6,560,015 for the fiscal year, while expenditures were $6,914,463.
Expenditures exceeded revenues by $354,448 prior o transfers in and out of the general fund.

During the year, the general fund received $948,437 from other City funds, while it transferred $327,882.
The net transfer in of $620,555 decreased the excess expenditures over revenues resulting in a net increase
of fund balance of $266,107. An increase in fund balance is indicative of prudent management of the
City’s funds during difficult economic conditions.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. An analysis of the major proprietary funds is as follows:



Proprietary funds increased total assets from $19,232,408 in 2009 to $19,389,338 in 2010. This was a 0.8%
increase. The water fund made up the largest portion of this increase with total assets of $15,959,928, which
is 82% of total proprietary assets. Water fund decreased total assets by $307,273, which is a 1.9% decrease.
This decrease was in the value of capital assets, which was reduced by depreciation. Solid waste increased
total assets by 20%, or $196,588. Airport assets increased 13% to $2,224,485. The increase in Airport
assets was due to a grant that allowed the construction of a snowplow shed.

Proprietary fund liabilities decreased by $555,939 during 2010. This was an 11% decrease. Water
liabilities decreased 13%, solid waste liabilities increased 15%, and airport liabilities decreased 13%.
Increased accounts payable accruals caused solid waste liabilities to increase.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The discussion that follows presents financial data based upon the budgetary basis of accounting. Please
refer to the notes of the financial statements for an explanation of the differences of accounting regarding the
budget. During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Geuerally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to
prepare the original budget once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new
funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropuiations
that become necessary to maintain services.

During the 2010 fiscal year, the general fund revenue budget was increased by $66,190. As discussed
above, budget adjustments are made for various reasons. At the end of the fiscal year, gross receipts taxes
were over budget by $585,657. Management was conservative when budgeting gross receipts based upon
the reduction in collections the previous year. Intergovernmental revenues were under budget by $175,685.
This category includes state and federal grants. Several grants were reverted to the state because of the state
budget crisis and the budget was not adjusted. Charges for services was also under budget by $140,092.
The largest item in this category is ambulance receivables, which were reduced due to the bad economy.

Expenditures were budgeted to exceed revenues by $1,453,794 before net transfers. All expenditure
categories were under budget by $1,006,806. Categories in which expenditures were significantly under
budgeted amounts included fire and police. The City’s policy is to budget based upon expected
expenditures, but City employees are encouraged to spend only what is needed to accomplish the task at
hand, which accounts for the expenditure savings.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2010 was $23,988,313 (net of accumulated
depreciation.) This investment in capital assets includes land, improvements, buildings, utility systems,
machinery, and equipment. Governmental capital assets, net, increased by $954,636. The largest increase
was in improvements, which had a net increase of $2,675,841. Much of this increase was due to completion
of the Courthouse Square project which was listed as construction in progress in 2009. Construction in
progress for governmental activitics decreased by $1,408,271 during the 2010 fiscal year. Business-type
activities experienced a total net capital asset decrease of $661,080. The reason for this decrcase was
depreciation.

A capital asset summary follows below:

CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land ) 698,102 % 698,102 § 4,593,347 § 4,593,347 § 5291449 § 5.291,44%
Construction in progress 208,844 1,617,315 186,878 216,463 395,722 1,833,578
Buildings 3,063,354 3,137,058 637,523 281,141 3,700,877 3,418,199
Improvements 5,233,514 25576713 5,820,923 6279670 11,054,437 8,837,343
Machinery and equipment 417927 522314 1,796,314 2,210,809 2.214,241 2,733,123
Fumuuee and fixtures 29011 46,449 466 955 29.477 47,404
Vehicles 921,549 1,038,954 380,561 494.707 1.302.110 1,533,661
Totals $ 10572301 % 967,665 S 13416012 $§ 14,077,092 § 23988313 § 23,694,757
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Loung-term Debt:

Al the end of the 2010 fiscal year, the City had total long term debt outstanding of $5,506,269, which
consisted of notes payable, bonds, landfill post closure obligations and compensated absences payable.
Governmental activity long term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2010 was §1,133,507 and business type
long term debt outstanding was $4,372,762. During the fiscal year, governmental funds reduced long
term debt by $365,681 and business type funds decreased Jong term debt by $602,918.

LONG TERM DEBT
Governmental Actlvities Business-type Activities Totals
2010 2009 2010 2099 2010 2009
Notes payable ) 566,986 § 742385 % 2886772 S 3,116,548 § 3453758 % 3,858,903
Bonds payable 220.000 450,000 730,000 1.070,000 950,000 1,520,000
Land capstal lease - - - 35,000 - 35,000
Landfil) post closure - - 706.380 706,380 706,380 706,380
Compensated absences 346,521 306,833 49,610 47,752 396,131 354,585
Toals 3 1,133,507 § 1499188 % 4,372,762 § 4975680 § 5.506269 § 6.474.868

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS

The State of New Mexico is still experiencing the effects of the recession. The unemployment rate
statewide as of September, 2010 was approximately 8%. The unemployment rate for Roosevelt County
was 5.4% for the same month. Portales is the largest community within Roosevelt County. A
comparison of the state to county unemployment rates indicates that the local economy is producing more
jobs than the state as a whole. Portales has a diversified economy with agriculture, light manufacturing,
retail, trucking and a state university providing varied opportunities for employment.

Cannon Air Force Base, situated between Portales and Clovis to the north, is expanding its operations.
This expansion is bringing more population to the area. The increased population is promoting interest
in new home construction in Portales. In the 2009-2010 year, the City issued 57 new home construction
permits compared to 23 new home permits the year before.

At this time, the prospect of capital project funding from the State is limited; however, the City is
actively pursuing federal stimulus grants. Currently, the City has federal awards for police, local growth
planning, and waste water plant planning and design. Management is also exploring other grant and
private award avenues 10 assist in equipment replacement and infrastructure repair and renewal.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the
City’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 100 W,
First Street, Portales, NM 88130.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010
Governmental Business-Type
Activitles Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 3,306,910 $ 1,512,494 4,819,404
[nvestments 737,147 679,371 1416518
Reeeivables:
Accounts 174,738 443,327 618,065
Taxes 1,210,828 23,768 1,234,596
Intergovemmental 336.984 - 336,984
Interes( 136 703 839
Returned checks 2.066 1,942 4,008
lnventory - 39,423 39,423
Internal balances 401 (401) -
Tola) cutrenl assets 5,769.210 2,700,627 8,469,837
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricled assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 137326 2,793,113 2,930,439
Investments - 443 284 443 284
Bond issue costs, net - 14,178 14,178
Bond reissue cosls, net - 22,124 22,124
Capital assets not being depreciated 906,946 4,780.226 5687172
Capital assets being depreciated, net 9.665.355 8,635,786 18,301,141
Total noncurrent assets 10,709,627 16,688,711 27398338
Total assets N 16,478,837 h) 19,389,338 35,868,175
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable S 103.629 S 106,983 210,612
Accrued interest 4,520 15,281 19,801
Accrued salaries 250,881 39,209 250,090
Accrued GGRT taxes 18,732 - 18,732
Unapplicd credits - 22,342 22342
Current portion of compensaled absences 36,437 6697 43134
Curtent portion of long term debt 289,037 657,534 946,571
Total current liabilitjes 703,236 848,046 1,551,282
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Custoiner deposits - 227,613 222,613
Accrued compensated abseaces 310,084 42913 352,997
Landfill closure . 706,380 706,380
Long termn debt duc after onc year 497,949 2,959,238 3457187
Total noncurrent liabilities 808,033 3.936.144 4,744,177
Total liabilities 1,511,269 4,784,190 6,295,459
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,785,115 9,799,220 19,584,535
Restricied for:
Deb service 23,406 505,353 528,759
Capial projects 113,919 972,557 1,086,476
Water conservalion - 1,006,889 1,006,889
Land(ill closure . 706,380 706,380
Unrestricted 5,044,928 1.614,749 6,659,677
Total net assetfs 14,967,568 14,605,148 20,572,716
Total hiabilities and net assels $ 16,478,837 3 19,389,338 35,868,175

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010
Capital Municipal Other Total
General Repair and Street Nonmajor  Governmental
Fund Replacement Fund Funds Fuuds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,306,456 § 78,689 $ 11,783 § 1,909,982 § 3,306,910
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 137,326 137,326
Investments 647,494 - - 89,653 737,147
Receivables:
Accounts 102,529 10,719 61,490 - 174,738
Taxes 1,054,510 - 33,824 122,494 1,210,828
Intergovernmental 1,256 15,913 104,341 215,474 336,984
Interest - - - 136 136
Returned checks 2,066 - - - 2,066
Due from other funds 121,502 - 401 121,903
Total assets $§ 3235813 § 105321 § 211,438 $§ 2475466 § 6,028,038
LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 68,120 § 1,899 § 14,645 § 18,961 $ 103,629
Accrued interest - - - 4,520 4,520
Accrued salaries 244,668 - - 6,213 250,881
Accrued GGRT Bonds 18,732 - - - 18,732
Deferred revenue 8,537 - - 4,961 13,498
Due to other funds - - - 121,502 121,502
Totzl liabjlities 340,057 1,899 14,649 156,157 512,762
Fund balances:
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund 2,805,756 - - - 2,895,756
Special revenue fund - - 196,789 1,849,520 2,046,309
Capital projects fund - 103,422 - 123,110 226,532
Debt service fund - - - 346,679 346,679
Total fund balances 2,895,756 103,422 196,789 2,319,309 5,515,276
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 13235813 $ 105321 § 211438 § 2475466 § 6,028,038

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2010

Amounts reported for government activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 5,515,276

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 10,572,301

Certain revenues do not meet the measurable and available criteria for revenue recognition in
govermunental funds, accordingly, these revenues are deferred in the funds. 13,498

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. This includes compensated absences of $346,521 and note obligations

of $786,986. (1.133,507)
Net assets - statement of net assets 3 14,967,568

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN THE FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 752,443

The changes in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reporied as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays of
$1,801,011 exceeded depreciation expense of $839,287 in the current period. 961,724

Disposition of capital assets. (7,088)

Uncollected property tax revenue 18 reported as deferred revenue in the governmental
funds, but is current revenue in the statement of activities, This is current year deferred
revenue of $13 498 less prior year deferred revenue of $5,116. 8,382

Issuance of note obligations is revenue in the governmental funds but increases the liability
In the statement of net assets, Repayment of bond and note principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets. This is the
amount by which note obligation 1ssuance of $0 was exceeded by principal repayments of
$405,369. 405,369

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the govermmental funds,
expenditures are mot recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which
is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when
financial resources are available. This is the amount by which compensated absences

liability changed from the previous year. (39,688)
Change in net assets of govermnmental activities $ 2,081,142
L]

See accomparying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues!
Taxes:
Gross receipls
Franchise
Property
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Licenses, fees and permits
Fines
Rentals
Grants and contributions
[nterest
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Legislauve

Community development/planning

Administration
Finance

Municipal court
Library

General services
Fire and ambulance
Emergency management
Police

Senior citizens
Technology/IT
Streets

Parks

Recreation

Public works
Human resources

Total expenditutes

Deficit of revenues over expendilures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fond balances

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Reconciliation of budgetary basis 1o GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgelary basis

Net revenue accruals
Net expendilure accruals

Nei changes in fund balance GAAP basis

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Original Kinal Actual Positive (Negative)
3 4,280,226 § 4,280,226 $ 4,865,883 § 585,657
322,300 322,300 306,506 (15,794)
316,238 316,238 270,815 (45,423)
227,487 274,487 98,802 (175,685)
704,750 714,894 574,802 (140,092)
39,800 44,155 180,910 136,755
112,830 112,830 87,765 (25,069)
22,324 22,324 35,710 13,386
3,000 7,651 26,527 18,836
10,500 10,500 19,706 9,206
73,750 73,750 92,589 18,839
6,113,205 6,179,385 6,560,015 380,620
180,996 193,615 196,626 (3,011
167,830 167,130 143,298 23,832
218,992 216,48) 162,386 54,095
457,528 457,528 391,443 66,085
138,572 138,572 116,467 22,105
107,981 307,481 283,849 23,632
183,124 183,124 153,515 29,609
1,710,185 1,708,435 1,554,166 154,269
38,625 38,625 - 38,625
2,258,255 2,288,395 1,971,876 316,519
50,997 50,697 40,540 10,157
86,573 77,834 63,993 13,84)
535,128 534,978 476,150 58,828
673,688 672,988 530,717 142,27)
144,597 144,297 37,606 106,691
5,730 5,730 2,102 3,628
447,979 447,279 501,649 (54,370)
7,606,780 7,633,189 6,626,383 1,006,806
(1,493,575) (1,453,794) (66,368) 1,387,426
1,375,000 1,390,245 948 437 (441,808)
(229,000) (311,946) (327,882) (15,936)
1,146,000 1,078,299 620,555 (457,744)
(347,575) (375,495) 554,187 929,682
2,657,464 2,657,464 2,657,464
$ 2,309,889 $ 2,281,969 § 3,211,651 § 929,682
$ 554,187
(288,080)
$ 266,107

See accompanying notes (o financial stalements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MUNICIPAL STREET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State allocations 3 358,161 § 158,161 § 654,543 % 296,382

Taxes:

Gasoline taxes 180,000 180,000 194,210 14,210
Total revenue 538,161 538,161 848,753 310,592
Expenditures:

Current:

Supplies 75,000 75,000 176,653 (101,653)
Capital outlay 477,161 477,161 306,722 170,439
Total expenditurcs 552,161 552,161 483,375 68,786
Deficit of revenues over expenditures (14,000) (14,000) 365,378 379,378
Other financial uses

Transfers in 14,000 14,000 1,616 (12,384)

Transfers out (42,644) (42,644) - 42,644
Net change in fund balances (42,644) (42,644) 366,994 409,638
Fund balance - beginning of year (180,529) (180,529) (180,529) -

Fund balance - end of year $ (223,173) § (223,173) § 186,465 3 409,638
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 366,994
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals 11,941
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 378,935
e

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010
Water and Solid Airport Total Proprietary
Sewer Fund Waste Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents s 1013240 § 499,085 § 169 $ 1,512,494
Investinents 480,142 199,229 - 679371
Receivables:
Accounts 340431 102.896 - 443,327
Taxes - 23,768 - 23,768
Interest 703 - 703
Retumed checks 1,837 105 - 1,942
nventory - - 39,423 39,423
Due from (to) other funds (401) - 4o
Total current assets 1,835,952 825,083 39,592 2,700,627
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Resincied assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,793,113 - - 2,793,113
lavestment 443,284 - . 443.284
Bond issve costs, net 14,178 - - 14,178
Bond reissue ¢osts, net 22,124 - - 22,124
Capitsl assets, net 10,851,277 340,250 2,224,485 13,416.012
Total noncurrent assets 14,123,976 340,250 2,224 485 16,688,711
Total assets 3 15959928 § 1165333 S 2264077 S 19,389,338
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 56,742 49,141 1,100 106,983
Accrued inferest 15,281 - - 15281
Accrued salaries 23.542 14,046 1,621 39,209
Unapplied credus 3,061 19,281 - 22342
Corsenl portion of compensated absences 4,954 1,588 155 6,697
Current postion of Jong term debl 656.218 852 464 657.534
Total cursent l{abilities 759,798 84,908 3,340 848,046
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Customer depostls 227,613 - 227,613
Accrued compensated absences 28,007 10,377 4,529 42913
Landfil closure - 706.380 - 706,380
Long tenm debt due after one year 2,956,670 }.662 906 2,959,238
Total non-current lizbilities 3.212.290 718,419 5.43s 3,936,144
Tola) habilities 3972088 803,327 8,775 4,784,190
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of relaled debt 7,238,389 337,736 2,223,095 9,799,220
Restricted for:
Debt service 532430 - 532,430
Capital projects 783,548 - - 783,548
Water conservation 947,802 - 947,802
Landfi)l ¢losure - 706,380 - 706,380
Unrestricted 2,485,611 (682.110) 32,207 1,835,768
Total net assets 1(,987.840 362,006 2.255302 14,605,148
Tolal liabilities and net assets s 15959928 § 1,165,333 S 2264077 S 19,389.338

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Foel sales
Late charges
Rentals
Tapping and reconnect fees
Other and miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating cxpenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Maintenance
Contracted and purchased services
Supplies
Noneapital purchases
Opcrating costs
Deprecialion
Ammortization

Tolal gperating expenscs
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
lavestment income
Environmenial gross receipts (ax
Water conservation fees
Grant proceeds
Interest expense
Gain on sale of asset
Total non-operating revenucs (expenses)
Income (loss) before transfers
Traasfers:

Transfers \n

Transfers out
Total teansfers
Change in nef assels

Net assets - beginning of year

Nezt assets - end of year

Whater and Solid Alrport Total Proprietary
Sewer Fund Waste Fund Fund Funds
Y 3,582,366 § 1161851 § - ) 4,744,217
- - 97,250 97250
68.904 348 69,252
2,400 - 38,284 40,684
125883 - - 125,883
4,163 - 657 4,820
3.783,716 1,16) 851 136,539 5,082,106
441,796 236,603 29,604 708,003
180,552 {30,430 7,785 318,767
853,434 78,508 15,107 947,049
108,187 484,658 574 593419
59.778 63,266 6277 129,321
602 7269 2,030 9901
412.015 7.459 115,775 535249
802,019 64,592 164,013 1,030,624
36302 - - 36,302
2.894.685 1,072,785 341,165 4,308,635
889,031 89,066 (204,626) 773471
63211 21,332 84,543
- 122,932 - 122,932
329,856 - - 329,856
73.264 - 433,599 506,863
(149.573) - - (149,573)
R - (58) (58)
316,758 144,264 433,54) 894,563
t,205,789 233,330 228915 1.668,034
606,272 - 40,088 646,360
(1.490,715) (48,750) - (1,539,463)
(884.443) (48.750) 40,088 (893,105)
321,346 184.580 269,003 774,929
11,666.494 177,426 1,986,299 13,830,219
$ 11,987,840 S 362,006 8 2255302 3§ 14,605,148

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Payments {o suppliers and conlraclors
Payments Lo employees for services

Nei cash provided by (used in) operating activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Enviconment(al gross receipls tax
Due to / from other funds
Water consesvation fecs
MNet transfers in (out)

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capial and related financing
aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grant proceeds
Interes( expense
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capita) assets
Principal payments on debt
Nel cash provided by (used in) capital financing activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment incoine

Net cash used in investing aclivities

Net increase in cash

Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents balances at year end:
Unrestricted cash

Restricted cash

Total cash and cash equivalents

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH FINANCING AND INVESTING TRANSACTIONS:

Issuance of long-term note payable for additions 10 water
improvement systein

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH:
Provided by (used in) opevating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustment (0 reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Changes in asseis and Jfabilities:
Receivables
Invenloty
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Unapplied credits
Compensated absences
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Water and Solid Waste Airport
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 3,826,072 § 1LISL,S 8 136,539 3 5,114,326
(1,506,375) (635,490) (140,801) (2,282,666)
(583,402) {362,649) (33.939) (979,990)
1,736,295 153,576 (38.201) 1,851,670
122.932 - 122,932
135 (169) - (34)
329856 - - 329,856
(884,443) (48.750) 40,088 (893.105)
(554,452) 74,013 40,088 (440.351)
73.264 - 433,599 506,863
(133,863) - - (1313,863)
. . (435,240) (435 240)
63,106 2,303 229 65,638
(622,37)) 837) (456) (623.664)
(619,864) 1,466 {1,868) (620.266)
44,064 17,328 - 61,392
44,064 17.328 - 61.392
606,043 246,383 19 852445
3.200,310 252,702 150 3.453,162
$ 3,806,353 § 499085 § 169 § 4,305,607
$ 1,013240 § 499085 $ 169 ¢ 1,512,494
2,793,113 - 2,793,113
$ 31806353 § 499085 S 169 § 4,305,607
$ 18888 S - $ - b 18,888
$ 889.03) % 89,066 S (204,626) $ 773471
802,019 64,592 164,013 1,030,624
36,302 - 36,302
30,901 (12,927) 17,974
. . 3,344 3,344
(36.057) 5,670 (1,038) (31.425)
1,878 3277 121 5276
852 2,791 - 3.643
766 1,107 (15) 1,858
10.603 . - 10,603
$ 1,736295 S (53576 $ (38,201) §$ 1,851,670
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Portales (the "City") is a political subdivision of the state of New Mexico, and
operates under the Mayor-Councl] form of government. The City provides the following
authorized services: public safety (police and fire), streets, water, sanitation, health and welfare,
culture and recreation, public improvements, and general administrative services.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP"). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued through November 30, 1989, when
applicable, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has
the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type funds, the
City has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the City are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City Council (the “"Council”) is clected by the public and it has the authority to make
decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations. It
also has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. Therefore, the City is a financial
reporting entity as defined by the Goveraumental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) in
its Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity.” There are no component units
included within the reporting entity as defined by Statement No. 14.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements—The basic financial statements
include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity. Program revenues include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or activity and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or activity and 3)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a
particular function or activity.
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Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead
as general revenues. The net cost (by function of governmental-type activity) is normally
covered by general revenues (property, sales, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
interest income, etc.). The City does not allocate indirect costs.

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
proprietary funds. Major individual government funds and major individual proprietary
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial staternents. The nonmajor
funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. The nonmajor funds are
detailed in the combing section of the statements.

The water and sewer fund, solid waste fund, and airport fund are the major proprietary
funds. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and
proprietary combined) for the determination of major funds.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The
focus of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental
and business-type categories. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be
analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements—The government-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value
in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Derived tax revenues
(i.e., sales taxes) are recognized in the period when the exchange transaction on the tax is
imposed or when the resources are received, whichever occurs first.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements—The governmental fund level financial
statements are reporied using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus of the governmental funds' measurement
(in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial
position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual

accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is made.
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Ad valorem, franchise, and sales tax revenues associated with the cwrrent fiscal period are
recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept. Licenses and permits, charges for
services, fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as
revenues when received in cash, as the resulting receivable is immaterial. Investraent
earnings are recorded as eamed since they are measurable and available. In applying the
susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are,
however, essentially two types of these revenues.

In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts
will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures
recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to puwpose of expenditure and
are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements.
These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible
to accrual criteria are met.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy
10 use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Business-type activities and all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present
increases and decreases (e.g., revenues and expenses) in net total assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principle ongoing operations.
The principle operating revenues of the City's water and sewer, solid waste and airport
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major govemmental funds:

General Fund—The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts Tor al}
financial resources of the general govemment, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Capital Repair and Replacement Fund—This capital project fund accounts for the City’s
capital assets and ongoing capital projects not associated with the proprietary funds.

Municipal Street—This special revenue fund accounts for the special assessment gasoline
tax received from the state and used for the maintenance and improvement of city streets.

Governmental Funds with Deficit Fund Balance—While the total unreserved fund balance
is not in a deficit position, the City has three funds with deficit balances as of June 30,
2010: Correction fund of $(993), Portales Area Transit fund of $(12,835) and Regiona}
Growth Planning Fund of $(11,297). The City has made capital expendifures and
encumbrances in these funds in anticipation of additional revenues and transfers.
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The City reports the following major business-type funds:

Water and Sewer Fund—The water and sewer fund is used to account for the provision
of water services 1o the residents of the City of Portales. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund including administration, operations
billing and maintenance. The Water and Sewer fund presented in the financial statements
consists of several funds: Water and Sewer Improvement Bond Fund, Water and
Wastewater Fund, Water Conservation Fund, and Water Improvement Fund.

Solid Waste Fund—The solid waste fund accounts for the billings and collections of the
trash collection services.

Airport Fund—The airport fund accounts for the operations of the municipal airport.

D. _Assets, Liabilities and Net Assels or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents——For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City
considers all highly liquid investments, including restricted assets, with a maturity when
purchased of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Deposits and Investments—Investments in the City's cash are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value. State statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit,
obligations of the state and the U.S. govemment, and the New Mexico State Treasurer's
investments pool. Cash is reported at book value. All other investments are carried at fair
market value using quoted market prices. Interest income, realized gains and losses on
investment transactions, and amortization of premiums/discounts on investment purchases
are included for financial statement purposes as investment income and are allocated to
participating funds based on the specific identification of the source of funds for a given
investment.

Receivables and Payables—Activity between funds that is representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as
interfund balance. Long term advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial
statements, are offsct by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable
in equal semiannual instaliments by November 10th and April 10th of the subsequent year
with levies becoming delinquent 30 days thereafler unless a timely protest has been made.
Taxes are collected on behalf of the City by the Roosevelt County Treasurers, and are
distributed in the month of the collection.

Inventory—Proprietary fund inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market on a
first-in, first-out basis, and consist of operating supplies held for use in operations and are
recorded as an expense when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted Assets—Certain long-term assets in the proprietary funds are classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited to payments for debt
service or other purposes such as "deposits held in trust for others."

Interfund Activity—Interfund activity is reported as Joans, services provided,
reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund balance as appropriate and are
subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or
near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are
when orne fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related
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cost as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers
between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide
financial statements.

Capital Assets—Capital assets include: property, planf, utility systems, equpment, and
infrastructure assets. Infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks, bridges, drainage systems,
lighting systems and similar items. Such assets are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns the govermment-wide financial statements. The
govermment defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$5,000, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Assets are capitalized at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. It is the policy of the
City not to capitalize computer soflware. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add value of the asset or materially extend the asset's lives are not capitalized.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the City had retroactively reported all
infrastructure assets owned by the municipality.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capilalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
like activities is inctuded as part of the capitalized value of the assets under construction.

Property, plant, and equipment, and infrastructure of the primary government is depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and building improvements 3040
Water and sewer plants 40
Streets 10-20
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 5-20
Computer equipment and software 3-5

Compensated Absences—I1t 1s the City’s policy to permit some employees to accumulate
earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All sick pay and vacation pay is accrued
when incwred in the government-wide or proprietary fund financial statements.

Deferred Revenues—Within the governmental funds, revenues must be available in order to
be recognized. Revenues such as real estate taxes that are not available are recorded as
deferred revenues and reflected as a liability within the balance sheet.

Long-Term Debt—In the government-wide fund financial statements, long-termn debt is
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental or business-type activities within the
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debi.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the period. The face amount of debt issued
is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Customer deposits—Cash held in the proprietary funds for customer deposits is restricted.
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Net Assets—The government-wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation.
Net assets are categorized as follows:

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt—This category reflects the portion
of net assets that are associated with capital assets less outstanding capital asset
related debt.

Restricted net assets— -This category reflects the portion of net assets that have third
party limitations on their use.

Unrestricted net assets—This category reflects net assets of the City, not restricted
for any project or other purpose. When the City incurs an expense for which it may
use cither restricted or unrestricted assets, it uses the restricted assets first whenever
they will have to be returned if they are not used.

Fund Equity—In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of
fund balance that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted. Designations
represent tentative managerial plans that are subject to change.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financlal statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events—Management has evaluated events through November 24, 2010. the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Data—The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Debt Service Funds and the Enterprise Funds by
following the budgetary procedures outlined below. The City is required to present the adopted
and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for each of these funds. The City
compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and expenditures based on the City's
modified accrual basis of accounting.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-
purpose financial statements:

1. The City submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1, prior to
June 30. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
A budget is proposed for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service and
Proprietary Funds.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. The budgets are then submuitted
to the Department of Finance and Administration-Local Government Division for review,
adjustment and approval.

3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution and the council
is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments with any fund. Any revisions
that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Department of Finance and
Administration-Local Government Division.
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4. Budgets for budgeted funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Budgetary comparisons have been presented in this reporl on the basis of the legally adopted
budget.

5. Appropriations lapse at year end with any unspent cash balance being available for
expenditures and appropriation in the subsequent year’s budget.

6. The level of classification detail in which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations
for each budget is in fund total.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the investment of City funds in a wide variety of instruments including
certificates of deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market
accounts, and United States Government obligations. All invested funds of the City properly
followed State deposit and investment requirements as of June 30, 2010.

Deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest bearing checking accounts in one or
more financial institution. Deposits may be made to the extent that they are insured by an agency
of the United States or by collateral deposited as security or by bond given by the financial
institution.

In accordance with FDIC, public unit deposits are funds owned by the City. Time deposits,
savings deposits and interest bearing NOW accounts of a public unit in an institution in the same
state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and separate from the $250,000 coverage for
public unit demand deposits at the same institution.

Excess of funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the
United States govermment, or by their depariments or agencies, and which are either direct
obligations of the State or the United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of those
governments.

The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bearing accounts is set by the State Board of Finance,
but the rate of interest will not be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United
States treasury bills of the same maturity on the day of deposit.

Custodial Creditr Risk—Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits and investments may not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal
deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than following state statutes. The City has not
suffered any previous losses and management believes any risk of loss of funds is minimal.

Statutes require collateral pledged for deposits in excess of the federal deposit insurance to be
delivered, or a joint safekeeping receipt be issued, to the City for at least 50% of the amount on
deposit with the institution, and 102% for amounts invested in repurchase agreements with the
institution.

The types of collateral an institution is permit{ed to use as pledged securities are limited to direct
obligations of the United States Government and all bonds issued by any agency or political
subdivision of the State of New Mexico.

The schedules listed below disclose requirements on reporting the insured and uninsured portions
of the City’s deposits regarding custodial credit risk.
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Interest Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that the change in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of the investments. The City does not have a formal policy to manage its
exposure to interest rate risk.

New Mexico State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool—The City maintains accounts
with the New Mexico State Treasurer Local Govermunent Investment Pool (LGIP), an external
investment pool. The LGIP is not SEC registered, and as a government investment pool, exempt
from disclosing concentration risk. The L.GIP is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s and has a
weighted average maturity of S0 days.

Section 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978 empowers the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the
State Board of Finance, to invest money held in the short-term investment funds in securities that
are issued by the United States government or by its departments or agencies and are cither
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government or are agencies sponsored by
the United States government.

The LGIP investments are monitored by the same investment commit{ee and the same policies and
procedures that apply to all other state investments. The pool does not have unit shares and
earnings are distributed monthly by the State Treasurer to the participants in proportion to the
amount and length of time the participants have funds on deposit. Participation in the LGIP is
voluntary and can be liquidated by the City at the City council’s discretion. The City’s balance in
the LGIP account as of June 30, 2010 is $1,859,802.

New Mexico Finance Authority Investment—The City maintains investment funds on account
with the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA), which in turn invests the funds in the State
Treasurer. NMFA'’s cash on deposit with the State Treasurer is invested by the State Treasurer in
“ovemight” repurchase programs. State statutes require that all deposits held by the State
Treasurer be collateralized at a minimum level of 50%. Repurchase agreements are collateralized
at 102% by the NMFA’s intemal policies. Funds held by the NMFA acting as trustee for the City
are invested in money market accounts that invest in United States Treasury obligations and/or
repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Treasury obligations. Separate financial statements of the
NMFA and State Treasurer collateral, categories of risk, and market value of purchased
investments which may differ from the cash deposited with the NMFA by the City.

Other Investments—The City also maintains $1,689,890 in investments outside of the internal
investment pool in the LGIP. The funds are invested in money market funds investing in federal
government-backed securities. The investments are in compliance with state statutes regarding
investments of governmental funds. These investments have not been rated.

All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as described by New Mexico State Statute,
in amounts equal to at Jeast 50% of the City carrying value of the deposits (demand and
certificates of deposit).

Such collateral, as permitted by the state statutes is held in each respective depository bank's
collateral pool at a Federal Reserve Bank, or member bank other than the depository bank, in the
name of the respective depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public
deposits it holds with the exception of deposit insurance provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.
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A summary of the cash deposits at June 30, 2010 is as follows:

First New Mexico Linsco/
Community Finance Private

Bank Authority Ledger Total
Total cash deposits $ 5,617.002 § 642,678 $ 1,674,110 § 7,933,790
FDIC/SPIC coverage (5,704,084) - (500,000) (6,204,084)
Unipsured funds subject to
custodial credit nsk (87,082) 642,678 1,174,110 1,729,706
Lloyd's of London securities
insurance protection - - 1,174,110 1,174,110
Funds (over) under
collateralized - total funds
subject to custodial credit risk § (87,082) § 642,678 § - $ 555,596

The following summarizes the collateral requirements at June 30, 2010:

50% of uninsured funds $ (43,541) § - 5 - $ (43,541)

(Over) under collateralized $ (43,541) § - $ - $ (43,541)

According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, public unit deposits are owned by the
public unjt. Time deposits, savings deposits and interest bearing money market accounts at a
public unit in an institution in the same state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and
separate from the $250,000 coverage for public unit demand deposits at the same institution.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable reported in the business-type activities at Jupe 30, 2010 represent net

balances due from customers of water and sewer and solid waste services provided by the City.
The following is the detail of the business-type receivables at June 30, 2010:

Allowance
Accounts for
Receivable Uncollectibles Total
Water and sewer ) 601,084 § (260,653) § 340,431
Solid waste 148,299 (45,403) 102,896

3 749,383 % (306,056) § 443,327

The general fund receivable of $102,529 consists of ambulance charges outstanding at June 30,
2010. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established for the ambulance accounts
receivable, as management believes the amounts are fully collectible from either third party
insurance companies or the patient. Management reevaluates the collectibility of the ambulance
receivables on an ongoing basis.
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Taxes receivable for the general fund are considered fully collectible and consist of the following:

Taxes
Receivable
Gross receipts taxes $ 949,199
Franchise 84,535
Property taxes 12,654
Other 8,122
$ 1,054,510

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet earned.
At the end of the cwrrent fiscal year deferred revenue which related to delinquent property taxes was
$13,498.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLE AND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers reflect a temporary transfer of cash due to temporary needs within the fund. The
composition of interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

TRANSFERS:
From Fund To Fund Amount Purpose
General Fund Solid Waste $ 48,750 Subsidize general fund operations
General Fund Water and Sewer 884,443 Subsidize general fund operations
General Fund Payroll Fund 7,271 Subsidize general fund operations
General Fund Disbursement Fund 7,974 Subsidize general fund operations
Correction Fund General Fund 15,500 Subsidize general fund operations
Emergency Medical Services  General Fund 29,743 Subsidize general fund operations
Library Fund General Fund 25,000 Fund library operations
Municipal Street Fund General Fund 14,000 Fund street expenditures
Portales Area Transit General Fund 49,500 Subsidize P.A.T. operations
Capital Repair and Replacement General Fund 87,397 Fund capital expenditures
CDBG - Capital Projects General Fund 50,000 Fund match for federal CDBG grant
Planning General Fund 1,410 Fund match for planning grant
Airport Enterprise General Fund 48,088 Subsidize airport operations
CDBG - Capital Projects Capital Repair & Replacement 18,912 Fund capital expenditures
CDBG - Capital Projects Municipal Street Fund 31,296 Subsidize CDBG operations
Portales Arca Transit General Fund 49,500 Subsidize P.A.T. operations
Municipal Street Fund General Fund 14,000 Fund street expenditures
CDBG - Capital Projects Municipal Fund 31,296 Subsidize CDBG operations
W&S Improv. Revenue Bonds Water & Sewer 427,227 Debt service payments
Water & Sewer Water Improvement 179,045 Fund capital improvements reserve
$ 2,020,352
R
BALANCES:
From Fund To Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Regional Growth Planning $ 2919 Fund Expenditure Reimbursement

General Fund Capital Projects 108,813 Fund Expenditure Reimbursement

Capital Projects Water and Sewer 401 Fund Expenditure Reimbursement

General Fund Beauntification/Litter Control 2,455 Fund Expenditure Reimbursement

General Fund Portales Area Transit 7,315 Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2010 1s as

follows:
Balance Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities: June 30,2009 Additions and Transfers June 30,2010
Assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 698,102 § - $ - $ 698,102
Construction in progress 1,617,115 1,036,258 (2,444,529) 208,844
Total assets not bemng depreciated 2,315,217 1,036,258 (2,444,529) 906,946
Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 6,279,054 - 121,977 6,401,031
Improvements 3,634,545 549,290 2,304,970 6,488,805
Machinery and equipment 2,742,693 14,286 (214,034) 2,542,945
Furniture and fixtures 203,872 - (3,400) 200,472
Vehicles 3,518,436 201,177 (91,975) 3,627,638
Total assets being depreciated 16,378,600 764,753 2,117,538 19,260,891
Less accumutated depreciation for:
Buildings (3,141,596) (195,681) - (3,337.677)
Improvements (1,076,872) (184,555) 6,136 (1,255,291)
Machinery and equipment (2,220,379) (126,856) 222,217 (2,125,018)
Furniture and fixtures (157,423) (17,438) 3,400 (171,461)
Vehicles (2,479,482) (314,757) 88,150 (2,706,089)
Total accumulated depreciation (9,076,152) (839,287) 319,903 (9,595,536)
Total assets being depreciated, net 7,302,448 (74,534) 2,437,441 9,665,355
Governmental capital assets, net $ 9,617,665 $ 961,724 § (7,088) § 10,572,301
Business-type Activities:
Asselts not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,593,347 § - $ - $  4,593347
Construction in progress 216,463 - (29,584) 186,879
Total assets not being depreciated 4,809,810 - (29,584) 4,780,226
Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 1,167,691 385,099 - 1,552,790
Improvements 17,749 474 50,142 (2,294) 17,797,322
Machinery and equipment 4,220,513 - (116,894) 4.103,619
Fumniture and fixtures 4,929 - - 4929
Vehicles 1,336,304 - (42,208) 1,297,096
Total assets being depreciated 24481911 435241 (161,396) 24,755,756
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (886,550) (28,717 - (915,267)
Improvements (11,469,804) (508,889) 2,293 (11,976,400)
Machinery and equipment (2,009,704) (378,383) 80,782 (2,307,305)
Furniture and fixtures (3,974) (489) - (4,463)
Vehicles (844,597) (114,146) 42,208 (916,535)
Total accumulated depreciation (15,214,629) (1,030,624) 125,283 (16,119,970)
Total assets being depreciated, net 9,267,282 (595,383) (36,113) 8,635,786
Business-type capital assets, net $ 14077092 3 (595,383) § (65,697) § 13,416,012
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The City reported $839,287 of depreciation in general fixed assets in use by govemmental funds on the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities. The City did not allocate the depreciation to the various
governmental functions, instead presenting the amount separately from the departmental functions on

the statement.
LONG TERM DEBT

A summary of changes in long-term debt, including capital lease obligations for the year ended June
30, 2010, was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2010

Governmental Activities:

Sales Tax Refund/Improv. Bonds $ 450,000 § - $  (230,000) $ 220,000

NMFA — Recreation Center 352,560 - (27,840) 324,720

Lasalle Bank — HVAC System 9,026 - (7,250) 1,776

Kansas St. Bank — Fire Truck 102,691 - (102,691) -

NM Retiree Health Care Authority 64,623 - (16,132) 48,491

NMFA Loan - Fire Pumper Truck 213,455 - (21,456) 191,999
Total Governmental Debt $ 1,192,355 § - $§ (405,369) § 786,986

Business-Type Activities:

Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds $ 1,070,000 §$ - h (340,000) $ 730,000
NMFA — Blackwater Well Field 1,965,464 - (245,962) 1,719,502
Land Capital Lease 35,000 - (35,000) -
NMRHCA 10,816 - (2,702) 8,114
Water Improvement 1,140,268 18,888 - 1,159,156
Total Business-Type Debt § 4,221,548 § 18,888 §  (623,664) § 3,616,772

Scheduled principal and interest payments on the City's long term debt are as follows:

Year
Ended Governmental Business-
June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Type Interest Total

2011 § 289,037 § 47,509 § 336,546 & 657,534 § 144,206 § 801,740

2012 74,227 32,647 106,874 690,055 115,269 805,324
2013 68,540 18,391 86,931 327,166 84,200 411,366
2014 56,816 15,035 71,851 339,138 70,644 409,782
2015 57,518 12,804 70,322 354,108 56,396 410,504
2016 - 2020 240,848 26,012 266,860 1,248,771 226,394 1,475,165

Total § 786,986 $ 152,398 % 939,384 § 3,616,772 § 697,105 § 4,313,88!
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Below are the terms, amounts due within one year, and maturity dates of the City's outstanding
long term debt:

Due
Interest ~ Payment Payment Maturity  Within Servicing
Description Rate Frequency Amount Date One Year Fund
Governmental Activities:
Semijannual  Approximately Sales Tax
Sales Tax Refund/Improv. Bonds Varies to Interest, Annual  $253,000 June 2011 $ 220,000 Revenue
5.00% Principal Annually
Capital
NMFA — Recreation Center Varies 10 Monthly $4,085 May 2019 27,925 Projects
S5.47%
December Energy
Lasalle Bank — HVAC System 6.25% Quarterly $3,625 2009 1,776  Conservation
NM Retiree Health Carc 7.50% Monthly $1,782 June 2013 17,373 General
Authority
NMFA — Fire Pumper Truck 3.77% Annual $26,676 May 2008 21,963 Fire Protection
Varlesto
$289,037
|
Business-Type Actlvities:
Variesto  Semiannual  Approximately Water and
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds 4.90% Interest, Annval  $391,000 June 2012 $ 355,000 Sewer
Principal Annually
Varies to Water and
NMF A — Blackwater Well Field  4.79% Monthly $27.018 May 2016 256,267 Sewer
September Water
Water Improvement 3% Annual $78,308.8 2029 $43,358 Conservation
Solid Waste,
NMRHCA 7.50% Monthly $261 June 2013 2,909 Airport, Water
and Sewer

$ 657,534
——

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City pays any accumulated accrued vacation leave in a lump cash payment to employees
upon retirement or to the employee’s estate in the event of death. Compensation for sick leave
is limited to time-off and is not monetarily compensated. The Water and Sewer, Solid Waste,
Airport, General Fund, or Portales Area Transit special revenue fund, as appropriate, are used
to liquidate the liability. The City does not pay accrued sick leave upon termination. The
liability also includes the City’s portion of employment taxes related to the hours and time
accrued by the employee.

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30,2009  Additions Reductions  June 30, 2010 One Year

Governmental Activities §$ 306,833 § 266,676 3 (226,988) § 346,521 $ 36,437
Business-Type Activities 47,752 37,552 (35.654) 49,610 6,697

$ 354,585 § 304,228 § (262,682) § 396,131 $ 43,134
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11.

REVENUE BONDS

The City has the capacity and has issued both Sales Tax and Revenue Bonds whereby the City has
pledged income derived from the Gross Receipts Tax and billings on water to pay the required debt
service on the bonds. Moody’s Investors Service affirmed the A3 underlying rating for both the
Sales Tax and Revenue Bonds in July, 2009. No new bonds were issued in the current year.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years
afler closure of the landfill site. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the
landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being recognized based on the future closure
and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts
waste,

The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care costs is based on the amount of the
landfill used during the year. The landfill was closed in 1997. The estimated liability for landfill
closure and postclosure care costs is $706,380 as of June 30, 2010, which is based on 100 percent
usage (filled) of the landfill. The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and postclosure
care is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to
monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2010. However, the actual cost of
post-closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in state and
federal Jandfill laws and regulations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and
employee health, dental, and accident benefits. The City participates in the New Mexjco Self-
Insurer's Fund risk pool. The New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund risk pool operates as a common risk
management and insurance program for workers compensation and property and casualty coverage.

These funds are funded entirely by member contributions and are administered by the New Mexico
Self-Insurer's Fund. The pools are authorized by joint powers agreements entered inio by each
participating entity as a separate and independent government and legal entity pursuant to the
provisions of Section 11-1-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978. The City's contributions for the year ended June
30, 2010 were $453,054.

The City has not filed any claims for which the settlement amount exceeded the insurance coverage
in any preceding years. However, should a claim be filed against the Authority which exceeds the
insurance coverage, the City would be responsible for a loss in excess of the coverage amounts. As
claims are filed, the New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund assesses and estimates the potential for [oss.

At June 30, 2010 no unpaid claims have been filed which exceed the policy limits and to the best of

management's knowledge and belief all know and unknown claims will be covered by insurance.
No major lawsuits have been filed against the City.

233 .



12,

13.

PENSION PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Plan Description——Substantially all of the City's full time employees participate in a public
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10,
Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator
of the plan, which is a cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit retirement plan. The plan
provides for retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost of living adjustments to plan
members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to PERA, P, 0. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504 2123, The report 1s also available

on PERA's website at www.pera.state.nn.us.

Funding Policy—Plan members are required to contribute 9.15% for general employees, 16.2% for
fire department employees and 7% for police department employees of their gross salary. The City
is required to contribute 9.15% for general employees, 21.25% for fire department employees and
18.5% for police department employees of their gross covered salary. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established in State statue under Chapter 10, Article
11 NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature. The City's
contributions to PERA for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $574,328, $590,505
and $571,314, respectively, which equal the amount of the required contributions for each fiscal
year.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - STATE RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN

Plan Description——The City contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the
New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance
and prescription drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico government
agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board was
established by the Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA, 1978). The Board is
responsible for establishing and amending benefit provisions of the healthcare plan and is also
authorized to designate optional and/or voluntary benefits like dental, vision, supplemental life
insurance, and Jong-term care policies.

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to
retirernent and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a
participant in the RHCA plan on the person's behalf unless that person retires before the employer's
RHCA effective date, in which the event the time period required for employee and employer
contributions shall become the period of time between the employer's effective date and the date of
retirement; 2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3) former legislators who
served at least two years; 4) former governing authority members who served at least four years.

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplernentary information for the postemployment healthcare plan. The report and
further information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at 4308 Carlisle
NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107.

Funding Policy—The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the
RHCA Board to establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for
healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service based
subsidy rate schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation fee of five
dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer's RHCA effective date or is a former
Jegislator or former goveming authority member. Former legislators and goveming authority
members are required to pay 100% of the insurance premium to cover their claims and the
admunistrative expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate schedule can be obtained from the
RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nro.us.
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15.

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that
establishes the required confributions of participating employers and their employees. The statute
requires each participating employer o contribute 1.3% of each participating employee's annual
salary; each participating employee is required to contribute .65% of their salary. Employers joining
the program afler 1/1/98 are also required to make a surplus-amount contribution to the RHCA
based on one of two formulas at agreed-upon intervals,

The RHCA plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The employer, employee and retiree
confributions are required 1o be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis. The statutory
requirements for the contributions can be changed by the New Mexico State Legislature.

The City's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$55,745, $56,8935, and $55,007, respectively, in employer contributions to the Retiree Health Care
Authority.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of
the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amount, if any, to be immaterial.

The City has several capital projects in progress at various states of completion. The majority of
these capital projects are being funded by reimbursement type grants, which require the City to incur
the expenditure then submit a request for reimbursement to the grantor. These requests must be
made before the respective grants expire.

The City is involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. The
City is insured through the New Mexico City Insurance Authority. In the opinion of management,
the outcome of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial position of the City.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement
No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans which is
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. The objective of this
Statement is to address issues related to the use of the alternative measurement method and the
frequency and timing of measurements by employers that participate in agent multiple-employer
other postemployment benefit plans. The City is analyzing the effect that this statement will have on
its financial statements, and currently believes it will have no significant effect on the financial
statements for the upcoming year.

In December 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement
No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies which is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting guidance for govemments that have petitioned for protection
from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. The
City incorporated this statement for the current fiscal year, and believes it had no significant effect
on the financial statements for the year.

In June 2010, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No.
59, Financial Instruments Omnibus GASB which is effective for financial statements for periods
beginning afler June 15, 2010, with earlier application encouraged. The objective of this Statement
is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure
requirements of certain financial instruments and extemnal investment pools. The City is analyzing
the effect that this statement will have on its financial statements, and currently believes it will have
no significant effect on the financial statements for the upcoming year.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

DESCRIPTION OF NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special
assessments, expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Correction Fund - Accounts for the operation and maintenance of public holding cells and local
correctional facilities through the assessment of traffic violations within the City’s jurisdiction.

Emergency Medical Services Fund — Accounts for the state funding and expenditures of emergency
medical equipment and supplies for the fire department.

Enhanced 911 Fund — Accounts for state inkind support and operatjons for the Enhanced 911 emergency
system.

Fire Protection Fund - Accounts for state fire allotment funds received for the operations and
maintenance of the fire department.

Beautification/Litter Control Fund — Accounts for the state grant funds necessary to aid in the litter
control and beautification of the municipality.

Law Enforcement Protection Fund — Accounts for the state grant funds for law enforcement support and
operations,

Library Fund — Accounts for the state, county, and private grants and donations to purchase books and
provide library supplies and operational expense.

Lodgers Tax — Accounts for the special assessment tax on motel room rentals used for the promotion of
the City.

Recreation Fund — Accounts for operations and maintenance of recreation facilities financed by a specific
tax on cigarette sales and other grants and donations.

Local DWI Fund — Accounts for state driving while intoxicated fines and other state grants for the
education and prevention of driving while intoxicated arrests.

Law Enforcement Special Service Fund -- Accounts for the revenue received from traffic safety fees to
promote law enforcement education in the community.

CDBG Rehabilitation Loan Repayment Fund — Accounts for the collection and disbursement of the
federal and state grants collected by the City on behalf of the citizens to assist in eligible single family
home improvements.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(Continued)

Portales Area Transit Fund — Accounts for the state grants received and ridership fees charged to
operate and maintain the local public transportation system.

Regional Growth Plapping Fund - Accounts for the federal grant received for planning and
implementation of a regional growth plan in response to the expansion of Cannon Air Force Base.

Community Development Block Grant Fund — Accounts for the state and federal funding received for
the improvement of streets in designated parts of the City.

Comprehensive Plan — Accounts for the state grants received for the development of a comprehensive
plan for the City.

Energy Conservation Lease Debt Service — Accounts for the dedicated gross receipts taxes collected to
fund the debt service on the HVAC system.

Risk Mapagement — Accounts for the expenditures of unemployment and other insurance premiums pajd
by the City.

Criminal Justice — Accounts for the state courts fees collected through municipal court on behalf of the
state.

MainStreet — Accounts for the donations and grants received and the related expenditures in conjunction
with the Mainstreet Portales project.

Economic Development — Accounts for the grants received and the related expenditures in conjunction
with the promotion of economic development within the City.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for the City’s capital project in conjunction with the
purchase and remodeling of the building for the City’s recreation center.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Fund — This fund accounts for the collection of allocated gross receipts taxes
and the related debt service of the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds issued in November, 1997.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CORRECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

Revenues:

Correction fees $ 22,000 § 22,000 $ 20,666 $ (1,334)

Interest income - - 4 14

22,000 22,000 20,680 (1,320)

Expenditures:
Current:

Supplies 37.500 38,115 34,622 3,493
Other financing uses:
Transfers in 15,500 15,500 15,500
Transfers out - - -
Net change in fund balance - (615) 1,558 2,173
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,224 3,224 3,224
Fund balance - end of year $ 3224 E 2,609 $ 4782 § 2,173
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis 3 1,558
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (2,970)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (1,412)

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State EMS Grant § 23,000 § 23,000 § 41,619 § 18,619

Interest - - 82 82

23,000 23,000 41,701 18,701
Expenditures:
Current:

Supplies 500 500 - 500

Operating costs 12,800 4,085 3,720 365
Capital outlay 9,700 55,550 55,550 -

Total expenditures 23,000 60,135 59,270 865
Other financing uses:

Transfers in - 29,744 29,743 0]
Net change in fund balance - (7,391) 12,174 19,565
Fund balance - beginning of year 7,826 7,826 7,826
Fund balance - end of year 3 7,826 § 435 § 20,000 $ 19,565

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

E-911 GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Orlginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State E-911 Inkind Grant 3 79,940 $ 79,940 $ 76,095 § (3,845)

Expenditures:
Current:

Purchased property services 49,291 49,291 48,795 496

Other operating costs 30,649 30,649 27,300 3,349
Total expenditures 79,940 79,940 76,095 3,845

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year 5 S 5

Fund balance - end of year s 5 8 5% 5 5

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Fina) Budget
Positive
Original Fipal Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

State Fire Marshall Allotment $ 168,276 § 168,276 % 203,819 § 35,543
Contributions - - - -
Interest income 1,300 1,300 615 (685)

Total revenues 169,576 169,576 204,434 34,858
Expenditures:
Current;

Purchased property services 40,000 30,000 - 30,000
Supplies 28,000 26,800 1,209 25,591
Operating costs 10,000 8,000 23,802 (15,802)

Capital outlay 34,766 25,069 - 25,069
Debt service:

Principal 45,533 124,151 124,150 1

Interest 9977 10,130 9,021 1,109
Total expendjtures 168,276 224,150 158,182 65,968
Other financing sources:
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - - -
Net changes in fund balance 1,300 (54,574) 46,252 100,826
Fund balance - beginning of year 77,510 77,510 77,510 -
Fund balance - end of year § 78,810 § 22936 § 123,762 $ 100,826
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 46,252
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (2,951)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis 3 43,301

L}

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

BEAUTIFICATION / LITTER CONTROL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Fina) Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State Beautification Grant N 10,400 § 13,630 $ 15961 § 2,331

Expenditures:
Current:

Salartes and wages - 995 (76) 1,071

Employee benefits - 77 76 1

Supplies 3,800 4,708 2,722 1,986

Noncapital purchases - - - -

Operating costs 6.600 7.850 8,126 (276)
Total expenditures 10,400 13,630 10,848 2,782
Net change in fund balances - - 5,113 5,113
Fund balance - beginning of year 2,202 2,202 2,202
Fund balance - end of year 3 2202 § 2,202 % 7315 § 5,113

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

State Law Enforcement

Protection Grant $ 32,000 $ 32,000 $ 32,000 $

Interest - 118 118
Total revenues 32,000 32,118 32,118
Expenditures:
Current:

Noncapita] purchases 10,000 11,386 11,386

Operating cost 12,000 6,390 6,390 -
Capital outlay 10,000 14,370 14,370 -
Total expenditures 32,000 32,146 32,146
Net change in fund balances - (28) (28)
Fund balance - beginning of year 28 28 28 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 28 % - 5 - 3 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actuyal (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Library Grant 3 3,121 % 6,330 § 6,727 § 397
Go Bond Issue 41,201 41,291 31,160 (10,131)
Grants and contributions:
E-Rate Grant 8,343 8,343 1,927 (6,416)
Coatributions 13,292 13,292 9,279 (4,013)
Interest - - 64 -
Total revenues 66,047 69,256 49,157 (20,163)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay - - - -
Noncapital library acquisitions 91,047 94,256 54,172 40,084
Total expenditures 91,047 04,256 54,172 40,084
Deficit of revenues over (23,000) (25,000) (5,015) 19,985
expenditures
Other financing uses
Transfers in 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Net chanige in fund balance - - 19,985 19,985
Fund balance - beginning of year (225) (225) (225) -
Pund balance - end of year 3 225) $ (225) § 19,985 § 19,985
Reconciliation of budgetary basis 10 GAAP basis:
Net changes w fund balance budgetary basis $ 19,985
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (1,087)
Net changes 11 fund balance GAAP basis $ 18,898

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LODGERS TAX PROMOTIONAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Lodgers' taxes 3 84,000 $ 84,000 $ 89,614 3 5,614
Fees, fines and forfeires - - - -
Interest income 480 480 450 (30)

Total revenues 84,480 84,480 90,064 5,584
Expenditures:
Current:
Supplies 500 500 - 500
Operating costs 201,620 201,620 157,490 44,130
Total expenditures 202,120 202,120 157,490 44,630
Net change in fund balances (117,640) (117,640) (67.,426) 50,214
Fund balance - beginning of year 227,181 227,181 227,181 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 109,541 $ 109,541 § 159,755 $ 50,214
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ (67,426)
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals 5,325
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis 3 (62,101)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

JUVENILE RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actusl (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Cigarette $ 33,000 $ 33000 3 38,218 § 5218
Recreation summer program 19,000 49,905 48,709 (1,196)
Vending/concession proceeds 4,800 4,800 - (4,800)
Granlts and contributions:

Hubbard Gramt - 6,000 6,000

Other donations 2,000 2,000 5,091 3,091

Total revenues 58,800 95,705 98.018 2,313
Expenditures:
Current;
Salaries and wages 24,162 28,479 22,351 6,128
Employee benefits 2,157 2,861 2,217 644
Supplies 18,500 35,810 28,491 7,319
Contractual services - 1,521 1,521
Other operating costs 300 2,002 2,798 (796)
Tota) expenditures 45,119 70,673 57,378 13,295
Net change in fund balance 13,681 25,032 40,640 15,608
Fund balance - beginning of year 107,024 107,024 107,024
Fund balance - end of year 120,705 132,056 § 147,664 § 15,608
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 40,640
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (2,216)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis 3 38,424

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LOCAL DW] PROGRAM SPECJAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State grants $ 125,666 $ 141,560 § 141440 § (120)
Fees, fines and forfeitures:

Fees and screenings 18,450 39,551 21,710 (17.841)
D.A.R.E. program - - - -
Contributions - - 908 908

Total revenues 144,116 181,111 164,058 (17,053)

Expenditures;

Cuwrrent:
Contractual services 120,950 129,150 119,802 5,348
Travel 4,700 7,047 3,506 3,541
Supplies 8,354 10,473 5,323 5,150
Repairs and Maintenance 1,112 1,112 - 1,112
Operating costs 9,000 30,100 16,287 13,813
Capita] Qutlay - 6,695 - -

Total expenditures 144,116 184,577 144918 39,639

Nei change in fund balance - (3,466) 19,140 22,606

Fund balance - beginning of year 90,972 90,872 90,972 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 90,972 3 87,506 % 110,112 $ 22,606

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 19,140

Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals 300

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis 8 19,440

R

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Fina) Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Fees, {ines and forfeitures:
Fees 3 5,000 § 5,000 § 5,601 $ 601
Contributions 5,000 5,000 6,153 1,153
Total revenues 10,000 10,000 11,754 1,754
Expenditures:
Current:
Supplies 11,000 11,000 4,810 6,190
Operating costs - - - -
Capital cutlay
Total expenditures 11,000 11,000 4,810 6,190
Net change in fund balance (1,000) (1,000) 6,944 7,944
Fund balance - beginning of year 27,023 27,023 27,023
Fund balance - end of year 3 26,023 $ 26,023 § 33967 § 7,944

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CDBG REHABILITATION LOAN REPAYMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues-
Intergovernmental $ - $ - h) - $
Expenditures:
Current
General government - - -
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning of year 8,115 8,115 8,115
Fund balance - end of year $ 8115 § 8,115 § 8,115 § -

Sce accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

PORTALES AREA TRANSIT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental;
State grants $ 106400 $ 206,206 $ 141313 § (64,893)

Fees, fines and forfeitures:

Fees 1,800 9,000 6,590 (2,410)
Total revenues 108,200 215,206 147,903 (67,303)
Expenditures:

Current:
Salaries and wages 63,696 103,041 02,022 11,019
Employee benefits 17,544 31,766 28,308 3,458
Travel - 2,000 128 1,872
Repairs and maintenance - 25 45 (20)
Supplies 21,108 20,080 1,028
Operating cosls - 12,549 78,936 (66,387)
Capital outlay 76,400 76,400 - 76,400
Total expenditures 157,640 246,889 219,519 27,370
Deficit of revenues over expenditures (49,440) (31,683) (71,616) (39,933)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 49,500 46,500 49,500
Net change in fund balance 60 17,817 (22,116) (39,933)
Fund balance - beginning of year 14,713 14,713 14,713
Fund balance - end of year h) 14773  § 32,530 § {(7,403) § (39,933)
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ (22.116)
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (4,543)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (26,659)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

REGIONAL GROWTH PLANNING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgefed Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State grants § - $ 2,020 § - b (2,920)
Expenditures:
Current:
Contractual services - - - -
Supplies - 2,920 419 2,501
Operating costs - - 2,500 (2,500)
Total expenditures - 2,920 2,919 1
Deficit of revenues over expenditures - - (2,919 2,919)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in
Net change in fund balance - - (2,919) (2,919)
Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - 3 (2919) §$ (2,919)
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis 8 (2,919)
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accrmals (8,378)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (11,297)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budpeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal grants $ 500,000 $ 500,000 § 165,804 § (334,106)
State grants 50,000 50,000 701 (50,701)
Total revenues 550,000 550,000 166,595 (384,807)
Expenditures:
Current:

Operating costs - - 24916 (24,916)
Capital outlay 703,895 703,895 165,894 538,001
Total expenditures 703,895 703,895 190,810 513,085
Deficil of revenues over
expenditures {153,895) (153,895) (24,215) 129,680
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 92,644 92,644 81,296 (11,348)
Net changes in fund balances (61,251) (61,251) 57,081 118,332
Fund balance - beginning of year 61,652 61,652 61,652
Fund balance - end of year $ 401 % 401 $ 118,733 % 118,332

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Nepative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental

State grants h) 26954 § 26,654 § 18,494 § (8,460)

Expenditures:
Current:

Capital outlay 31,954 31,954 19.904 12,050
Deficit of revenues over
expenditures (5,000) (5,000) (1,410) 3,590
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 5,000 5,000 1,410 (3,590)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - 8 - $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

ENERGY CONSERVATION LEASE DEBT SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts taxes $ 14,501 § 14,501 2,416) $ (16,917)
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 7,085 7,085 7,251 (166)
Interest 167 167 37 204
Total expenditures 7,252 7,252 7,214 38
Excess of revenues over expenditures 7,249 7,249 (9,630) (16,879)
Fund balance - beginning of year 9,630 9,630 9,630 -
Fund balance - end of year b 16,879 % 16,879 - h (16,879)

See accomparnying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RISK MANAGEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and other:
Investment income $ 1,200 § 1,200 § 192§ (1,008)
Reimbursements and refunds 6,000 6,000 1,932 {4,068)
Total revenues 7,200 7,200 2,124 (5,076)
Expenditures:
Current:

Operating costs 7,200 7,200 6,976 224
Excess of revenues over expenditures - - (4,852) (4,852)
Net changes in fund balances - - (4,852) (4,852)
Fund balance - beginning of year 100,150 100,150 100,150
Fund balance - end of year $ 100,150 $ 100,150 § 05,298 $ (4,852)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revernues:
Fees, fines and forfeitures:
Fees $ 9,400 $ 9,400 $ 9,088 § (312)

Expenditures:

Current:

Operating costs 9,400 9,400 7,820 1,580
Net changes in fund balances - - 1,268 1,268
Fund balance - beginning of year 2,751 2,751 2,751 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 2,751 3§ 2,751 § 4019 $ 1,268
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 1,268

Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals (692)

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis 3 576

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MAIN STREET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest income 3 - $ - $ 42 9 42
Expenditures:
Current.
Supplies - 30 29 |
Operating costs 10,000 10,452 10,452 -
Total expenditures 10,000 10,482 10,481 I
Net changes in fund balances (10,000) (10,482) (10,439) 43
Fund balance - beginning of year 10,818 10,818 10,818
Fund balance - end of year ) 818 § 336 § 379 & 43

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes’

Gross receipts 3 216,016 § 216,016 § 245,654 % 29,638
Interest and other - - 14,805 14,805
Total revenues 216,016 216,016 260,459 44 443
Expenditures’

Contractual services 1,116,016 1,116,016 46,623 1,069,393

Capital outlay - - 140,752 (140,752)
Total expenditures 1,116,016 1,116,016 187,375 028,641
Net changes in fund balances (900,000) (900,000) 73,084 973,084
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,117,638 1,117,638 1,117,638 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 217,638 $ 217,638 $ 1,190,722 § 973,084
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis b 73,084

Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals (397)

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 72,687

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CAPITAL REPAJR AND REPLACEMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal $ 218,466 § 218466 § 229,646 $ 11,180
State 1,064,530 1,153,261 416,068 (737,193)
Other 127,000 182,000 175,072 (6,928)
Total revenues 1,409,996 1,553,727 820,786 (732,941)
Expenditures:
Current;

Non capital purchases - - - -

Capital outlay 1,453,372 1,635,660 1,000,698 634,962

Total expenditures 1,453,372 1,635,660 1,000,698 634,962
Deficit of revenues over expenditures (43,376) (81,933) (179,912) (97,979)
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 12,000 50,557 68,485 17,928
Net changes in fund balances (31,376) (31,376) (111,427) (80,051)
Fund balance - beginning of year 218,091 218,091 218,091 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 186,715 3 186,715 § 106,664 $ (80,051)
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ (111,427)

Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals 60,546

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (50,881)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-67 -




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Taxes:

Gross receipts $ 49,020 $ 49,020 § 49020 §$ -

Interest 3,000 3,000 1,295 (1,705)
‘Total reverues 52,020 52,020 50315 (1,705)
Expenditures:

Debt service:

Principal 27,840 27,840 27,840 -

Interest and administrative {ees 18,871 18,871 18,663 208
Total operating expenses 46,711 46,71) 46,503 208
Net change in fund balance 5,309 5,309 3.812 (1,497)
Fund balance - beginning of year 119,298 119,298 119,298
Fund balance - end of year 3 124,607 $ 124,607 § 123,110 § (1,497)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-68 -



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS FUND - DEBT SERVICE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Budpeted Ampunts

Variance with

Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes!
Gross receipts $ 250,527 $ 250,527 $ 250,527 § -
Interest 2,000 2,000 7,242 5,242
Total revenues 252,527 252,527 257,769 5,242
Expenditures.
Debt service:
Principal 230.000 230,000 230,000
Interest and administrative fees 22,500 22,500 21,519 981
Total expenditures 252,500 252,500 251,519 981
Excess of revenues over expenditures 27 27 6,250 6,223
Fund balance - beginning of year 340,429 340,429 340,426
Fund balance - end of year $ 340,456 $ 340,456 § 346679 §$ 6,223

See accompanying notes {0 financial stalements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Variance With

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actusl Positive (Negativc)
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charvges for services 3 4,060,000 § 4,060.000 $ 1,582366 $ (477.634)
Late ¢chatges 80,000 80,000 68,904 (11,096)
Rentals 3,600 3.600 2,400 (1,200)
Tapping and reconoect fees 68,000 68.000 125,883 57,883
Other 422.740 - 4.163 4,163
Total revenues 4,634,340 4,211,600 3,783,716 (427.884)
OPERATING EXPENDITURES.
Salaries and wages 561,601 512,134 441,796 70,938
Employee benefits 232,980 232,980 180,552 52,428
Travel 3.100 3,100 - 3,100
Maintenance 281,800 291.071 853,434 (562,363)
Contracted and puychased sevvices 165,470 171.470 108,187 63283
Supphes 36,500 40,603 59,778 (19.175)
Noncapital purchases 4,700 4700 602 4,098
Operaling costs 654,060 653,660 412,015 241,645
Capital outlay 1.257.000 1,353.000 - 1,353,000
Debit service 761,814 761,822 622,37 139451
Tota) opecating expenses 3,959,025 4,025,140 2,678,735 1.346.405
Operating income 675315 186,460 1,104,981 918.521
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES).
Investiment income 37.500 36,909 63,211 26,302
Watei conservalion fees 327,500 327,500 329,856 657356
Granl proceeds 104,978 527,718 73,264 (454,454)
Interest expense - - (149.573) (149,573)
Total non-operaling cevenues 469,978 892,127 316,758 79.63)
Nel income before translers 1,145,293 1,078,587 1421,739 343152
Transfers:
Transfers in 571,735 607,228 606.272 (956)
Transfers out (1.871,73%) (1,907,628) (1.490.7135) 416,913
Tofal operating fransfers (1.300,000) (1.300.400) (R84.443) 415,957
Net income (loss) (154.707) (221,813) 537,296 759.10%9
Fund balance - beginning of year 9,789,366 9,789,366 9.789.366
Fund balance - end of yeay 3 9.634.655 § 9.567,553 § 10,326,662 § 759,109
Reconciliation of net income for budgetary basis to statemenls of activities for
proprielary funds:
Net incoine afier transfers - budgetary basis s 537,296

Awmounts reporied in the statement of activities differ becaose:

Budgeled debt service expenditures reduce water and sewer
fizbilities and are not reporied in proprietary funds s:alement of
activities 62237

Depteciation is reparied in (he proprietary funds
statenent of aclivities buf is not a budget expenditure
item (802.019)

Asmottization is reported in (he proprietacy funds statement of

activities but is not a budge( expenditure jtem (36.302)
Net incomu afier ansfers - financial statement basss $ 321,346
T

See accowmpanying notes (0 financia) statements,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Operating revenues,
Charges for services

Operaling expenditures:
Current
Salarics and wages
Employee benefils
Travel
Mamtenance
Coniracted and purchased services
Supplies
Noncapital purchases
Operaling costs
Capital outlay
Debt Service

Tolal operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Invesunent income
Environmental gross receipts tax
Grant procesds
Total non-operating revenues
Net income before iransfers
Transfers:
Transfers out
Net income (loss)

Fund balance - beginaing of year

Fund balance - end of year

Variance With Final

Reconciliation of net income for budgetary basis (o statements of

activities for proprictary funds

Net income after transfers - budgetary basis

Amounts repoited in (he statement of activities differ because.

Budgeted debt service expendituyes reduce water and sewer
liabilities and are nol reported in proprietary funds slatement of

activifies

Depreciation 15 yeported in the propnetary funds staterent of

activilies but is not a budget expendituce item

Net income afier ivansfers - financial statement basis

See accompanying noles o financial statements.
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Original Final Budget Positive
Budpet Budget Actual (Negative)
Y 1,115,000 % 1.115000 § 1,161,850 $ 46,851
272,660 260,081 236.603 23,478
80,662 103,620 130,430 (26.810)
750 150 - 750
95,400 95,400 78.508 16.392
491,746 501,746 484.658 (7,088
92,000 71,621 63,266 8335
7.700 7,700 7,269 431
67,240 67,040 7459 59,581
58,000 58,000 58,000
- - 837 (837)
1,166,158 1,165,958 1,009,030 156,928
(51,158) (50,958) 152,821 101.863
2,400 2,400 21332 18,932
108,250 108,250 122,932 14,682
13,900 13,900 - (13,900)
124,550 124,550 144,264 19,714
73392 73,592 297,085 121,577
75,000 75.200 48,750 -
(1.608) (1,608) 248,335 (121,577
87,471 87471 87,471 -
S 85863 § 85.863 3 335,806 $ (121.577)
S 248,335
837
(64.592)
S 184,580



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Varlance With Final

Original Final Budget Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating sevenues:

Fuel sales S 117000 $ 117.000 % 97250 § (19,750)

Late charges 850 850 348 (502)

Rentals 33,000 33,000 38.284 5284

Other and miscellaneous 711 711 657 (54)

Tota) revenues 151,561 151,56) 136,539 (15,022)
Operating expenditures:
Curent

Salaries and wages 29916 29,916 29,604 312

Employee benelus 5.44) S, 441 7,185 (2,344)

Travel 1.000 1,075 - 1,075

Mainlenaace 647.542 212300 15,107 197,193

Contracied and purchased services - 92.244 574 91,670

Supplies 10,500 10,425 6,277 4,148

Noncapital purchases 2,000 2,000 2,030 (30)

Operating cosls 147.756 147,756 115,775 31,981
Capua) outlay - 342,998 435,240 (92,242)
Debi sevvice - - 456 (456)

Tolal operating expenses 844,155 844,155 612,848 231,307
Operaling loss (692,594) (692,594) (476,309) 216,285
Non-operaling revenues (expenses):
Graw( proceeds 634,594 634,594 433,599 (200,995)
Loss on sale ol assel - - (58) (58)
Tota) non-operating revenues (expenses) 634,594 634,594 433,541 (201,053)
Net income before transfers (58,000) (58,000) (42.768) 15,232
Transfers:

Transfers in 58,000 58,000 40,088 (17,912)
Nel incoine - - (2.680) (2,680)
Fund balance - beginning ol year 2,332.504 2.332,504 2,332,504
Fund balance - end of year S 2,332504 S 2,332,504 § 2329824 § (2,680)

Reconciliation of pet income for budgetary basis to stalements of
acthvities for propuietary funds

Net income afier transfers - budgetary basis $ (2,680)
Amounts reponed in the siatement of activities differ because:

Capital ouflay is a budget expendifure but is repoited on the
propsietasy fund statements of nel assels 435240

Budgelad debt service expendilures reduce wates and sewer liabilities
and are not veported in proprictary funds statement of activilies 456

Depreciation is repornted in (he proprietary funds s(atement of

achivities but i3 not a budget expenditure item (164.013)
Net loss afier transfers - financial statement basis $ 269,003
|

See accompanying noles to financial slatements,
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



=. Strickler & Prieto, LLP
201 E. Main, Suite 500

El Paso, Texas 79901

Tel. (915) 532-2901

Fax (315) 532-0807

WWW.C02-5D.C0mM

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Hector H. Balderas, New Mexico State Auditor
Honorable Mayor and

Members of City Council

City of Portales

Portales, New Mexico

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, the budgetary comparisons of the general fund
and major special revenue funds, and the combining and individual funds and related budgetary
comparisons, presented as supplementary information of the City of Portales (the "City") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated November 24, 2010, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

[n planning and performing our aundit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s intemal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A maierial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material

weaknesses.
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in intemmal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be a significant deficiency, described as 2009-01.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material missiatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as items 2009-01 and 2006-02.

We also noted certain other matters that are required to be reported pursuant to Governmental Auditing
Standards paragraphs 5.14 and 5.16, and pursuant to Section 12-6-5, NMSA 1978, which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as finding 2009-01 and 2006-02.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit s described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, the City’s management, the
State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration,

and applicable federal grantors, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyoune other than
these specified parties.

Hrlckien § Rt LUP

November 24, 2010
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Hector H. Balderas, New Mexico State Auditor
Honorable Mayor and

Members of City Council

City of Portales

Portales, New Mexico

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Portales (the “City"), with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A4-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2010. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinton on the City’s compliance based on
our audt. :

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

As described in items 2009-01 and 2006-02 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, the City did not comply with requirements to maintain a current detailed capital asset listing and to
capitalize equipment that cost over $5,000 and with requirements to submit the audit report by December
1. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City to comply with the
requirements applicable to those programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City complied, in
all material respects, with the requirements referted to above that are applicable to each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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Internal Conirol Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal contro) over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to 1dentify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance
that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider
to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
item 2009-01 to be a significant deficiency.

The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the City's management, City Council, the
State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration,

and applicable federal grantors, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Roiklan § Fhits, LLp

November 24, 2010
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Federa) Grantor/Pass Through Federal Contract/Grant Award Federal
Grantor/Program Title CFDA No. Prg|ect/State Number Amount  Expenditures

Departiment of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through the State of New Mexico

Departrnent of Finance and Administration
Small Cities Program 14.228 09-C-NR-1-01-G-40 $ 500,000 $ 165,894

Department of Housing and Urban Development
EDI - Special Project Grants 14.251 B-06-SP-NM-0687 198,000 193.577

Department of Justice
ARRA Edward Byme Memonial Justice Assistance
Graat Program 16.804 2009-SB-B9-2987 20,466 20,461

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed Through the New Mexico Departiment of

Transportation
ARRA FTA 5311 Transit Capilal Assistance Funds 20.509 MOO883 76,720 75,382

Federal Highway Authority
Passed Through the New Mexico Departmeni of

Transportation
ARRA Federal-Aid Highway Program 20.205  ECO-TPA-TPO-070-7 (1) 420 249,747 237,904

U.S Department of Interior
Passed Through the U.S. Burean of Reclamation
Water Reclamation and Reuse Program 15.504 08-FG-40-2780 116,834 53,812

Depariment of Defense
Passed Through the Office of Economic Adjustment
Cominunity Planning Assistance Fund 12.607 RA(0739-10-02 119,100 2,919

U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation

Administration
Airport [mprovement Program 20,106 3-35-0061-013-2009 412,45] 412,451

U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office of
Domestic Preparedness
Passed Through the New Mexico Department of
Homeland Securily and Emergency Management

2008 Emergency Management Perforiance Grant 97.042 2008-EMPG-ROOSEVELT 23,608 23,608

2009 State Homeland Seeurity Grant Program 97.067 2009-SS-T9-000030 15,850 15,608

2008 Pre-Disaster Mitigation 97.017 PDMC-06-NM-2008 51,500 -
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,784,276 § 1,201,616

Basis of Presentation

The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Portales and is
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." Therefore,
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in preparation of, the basic

financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of all federal awards of
the City of Portales (the "City"). The City is defined in Note 1 of the City's financial Statements. All
federal awards received, including those received through other agencies are included on the schedule.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 of the City’s financial statements,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X _No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to

be material weaknesses? X Yes None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? X  Yes No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X _ No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to

be material weaknesses? X  Yes None Reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
Circular A-133? X  Yes No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 Airport Improvement Program
20.205 ARRA Federal-Aid Highway Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X_ No
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
2006-02: Late Audit Report

Condition

The required submission date of the audit report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 to the New
Mexico State Auditor was December 1, 2010. The June 30, 2010 revised financial statements
were submitted in January 201].

Criteria
The New Mexico State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9A(1) requires audit reports for municipalities to be
submitted by December 1st following the end of the fiscal year.

Effect
The City's financial status and other information is not available to the public and various state
agencies in a timely manner.

Cause
The New Mexico State Auditor's office required corrections to the original audit report
subrmission.

Recommendation

The audit report should be submitted prior to the submission deadline date to allow the New
Mexico State Auditor's office time to review and release the audit report by the December 1st
deadline date.

Agency Response
The City will proactively work with the Independent Public Accountants to expedite the
preparation of current and future financial audits.

2009-01: Capital Assets

Condition
During our substantive test work over capital assets we noted the following:

. Approximately $158,000 in capital assets were incorrectly recorded as repairs
and maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to capital asset
accounts.

. Approximately $186,000 in construction in progress assets were incorrectly
recorded as repairs and maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to
capital outlay and capital asset accounts.

. Approximately $335,000 in capital asset additions were posted in the incorrect
fund.

. Capital assets for approximately $71,000 were incorrectly capitalized.

. Several of the additions in the capital asset listing did not have the correct line
item the expense was recorded in.

. The City is not reconciling the capital asset listing to the general ledger
accounts.

Criteria

New Mexico State Statutes Section 12-6-10 directs the general services department to promulgate
regulations to state agencies for the accounting and control of capital assets owned by government
agencies and requires agencies (o capitalize equiptnent that cost over $5,000. In addition the City
is required to maintain a cwrent detailed capital asset listing and to record disposal and
acquisitions of assets in the period in which they are disposed or acquired.
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Effect

Repairs and maintenance expenditures were overstated by approximately $414,000 and capital
assets understated by $158,000. Without proper recording of capital asset additions, the City’s risk
of asset misappropriation increases.

Cause
According to City personnel this occurred due to oversight.

Recommendation

We recommend that City personnel identify all disposals and acquisitions as they occur and
properly record them. The City should also consider reconciling capital assets on a monthly basis
from the general ledger accounts to the capital asset listing.

Agency Response

The City will develop procedures to identify additions and disposals as they occur and properly
record them. The City will institute a review process for items recorded in repairs and
maintenance to ensure that they are properly classified and posted. The City is developing
procedures 10 reconcile capital assets to the general ledger.

FINDINGS - FEDERAL AWARDS

2009-01: Capital Assets - Department of Housing and Urban Development, Passed Through
the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, Small Cities Program,
CFDA No. 14.228; Department of Housing and Urban Development, EDI - Special Project
Grant, CFDA No. 14.251; Department of Justice, ARRA Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance Grant Program, CFDA No. 16.804; U.S. Department of Transportation, Passed
Throagh the New Mexico Department of Transportation, ARRA FTA 5311 Transit Capital
Assistance Funds, CFDA No. 20,509; Federal Highway Authority, Passed Through the New
Mexico Department of Transportation, ARRA Federal-Aid Highway Program, CFDA No.
20.205; U.S Department of Interior, Passed Through the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Water
Reclamation and Reuse Program, CEFDA No. 15.504; Department of Defense, Passed
Through the Office of Economic Adjustment, Community Planning Assistance Fund, CFDA
No. 12.607; U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration, Airport
Improvement Program, CFDA No. 20.106; U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office of
Domestic Preparedness, Passed Through the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security
and Emergency Management, 2008 Emergency Management Performance Grant, CKDA No.
97.042, 2009 State Homeland Security Grant Program, CFDA No. 97.067, and 2008 Pre-
Disaster Mitigation, CFDA No. 97.017.

Condition
During our substantive test work over capital assets we noted the following:

. Approximately $158,000 in capital assets were incorrectly recorded as repairs
and maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to capital asset
accounts.

. Approximately $186,000 in construction in progress assets were incorrectly

recorded as repairs and maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to
capital outlay and capital asset accounts.

. Approximately $335,000 in capital asset additions were posted in the incorrect
fund.

J Capital assets for approximately $71,000 were incorrectly capitalized.

. Several of the additions in the capital asset listing did not have the correct line
item the expense was recorded in.

. The City is not reconciling the capital asset listing to the general ledger
accounts.
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Criteria

New Mexico State Statutes Section 12-6-10 directs the general services department to promulgate
regulations to state agencies for the accounting and control of capital assets owned by government
agencies and requires agencies to capitalize equipment that cost over $5,000. In addition the City
is required to maintain a current defailed capital asset listing and to record disposal and
acquisitions of assets in the period in which they are disposed or acquired.

Effect

Repairs and maintenance expenditures were overstated by approximately $414,000 and capital
assets understated by $§158,000. Without proper recording of capital asset additions, the City’s risk
of asset misappropriation increases.

Cause
According to City personnel this occurred due to oversight.

Recommeundation

We recommend that City personne! identify all disposals and acquisitions as they occur and
properly record them. The City should also consider reconciling capital assets on a monthly basis
from the general Jedger accounts to the capital asset listing.

Agency Response

The City will develop procedures to identify additions and disposals as they occur and properly
record them. The City will institute a review process for items recorded in repairs and
maintenance to ensure that they are properly classified and posted. The City is developing
procedures to reconcile capital assets to the general ledger.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

2006-02  Late Audit Report Repeat
2009-01  Capital Assets Repeat
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CITY OF PORTALES

EXIT CONFERENCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

An exit conference was conducted on November 29, 2010 in a closed meeting of the City Council pursuant
to Section 12-6-5 NMSA, 1978 with the following individuals in attendance:

City of Portales Officials

Sharon King Mayor
Thomas Howell City Manager
Marilyn Rapp City Treasurer
Alfredo Bachicha Councilor

Strickler & Prieto, LLP
Brad Voge Manager

Financial Statecment Preparation

The City’s independent public accountants prepared the accompanying financial statements; however, the
City is responsible for the financial statement content.
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